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amount will apply only to violations 
that occur after the date the increase 
takes effect. 

(c) This part provides for the 
issuance of the notice of civil penalty 
for any violation of section 12 of the 
Act relating to child labor or any regu-
lation issued under that section; de-
scribes the violations for which a pen-
alty may be imposed and the factors to 
be considered by the Secretary of 
Labor or the Secretary’s designated 
representative in assessing the amount 
of such a penalty; outlines the proce-
dure for an exception to the determina-
tion that the violations occurred which 
may be filed by the person so charged; 
and summarizes the methods provided 
for collection and recovery of the pen-
alty. 

[40 FR 25792, June 18, 1975, as amended at 56 
FR 8679, Feb. 28, 1991; 66 FR 63503, Dec. 7, 
2001] 

§ 579.2 Definitions. 

As used in this part and part 580 of 
this chapter: 

Act means the Fair Labor Standards 
Act of 1938, as amended (52 Stat. 1060, 
as amended; 29 U.S.C. 201, et seq.); 

Administrative law judge means a per-
son appointed as provided in 5 U.S.C. 
3105 and subpart B of part 930 of title 5 
of the CFR, and qualified to preside at 
hearings under 5 U.S.C. 554–557. 

Administrator means the Adminis-
trator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administra-
tion, U.S. Department of Labor, and in-
cludes an authorized representative 
designated by the Administrator to 
perform any of the functions of the Ad-
ministrator under this part and part 
580 of this chapter. 

Agency has the meaning given it by 5 
U.S.C. 551. 

Chief Administrative Law Judge means 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
Office of Administrative Law Judges, 
U.S. Department of Labor, 800 K 
Street, NW., Suite 400, Washington, DC 
20001–8002. 

Department means the U.S. Depart-
ment of Labor. 

Person includes any individual, part-
nership, corporation, association, busi-
ness trust, legal representative, or or-
ganized group of persons. 

Secretary means the Secretary of 
Labor, U.S. Department of Labor, or an 
authorized representative of the Sec-
retary. 

Solicitor of Labor means the Solicitor, 
U.S. Department of Labor, and includes 
attorneys designated by the Solicitor 
to perform functions of the Solicitor 
under this part and part 780 of this 
chapter. 

[40 FR 25792, June 18, 1975, as amended at 40 
FR 53237, Nov. 17, 1975; 56 FR 54708, Oct. 22, 
1991] 

§ 579.3 Violations for which penalty 
may be imposed. 

(a) What constitutes the violation. Each 
of the following constitutes a violation 
of the Act and/or the Secretary’s regu-
lations for which a penalty as provided 
by section 16(e) of the Act and this part 
may be imposed, unless employment of 
the minor or minors referred to is 
shown to come within a specific exemp-
tion or exception described in para-
graph (c) of this section: 

(1) Each shipment or delivery for 
shipment in commerce by a producer, 
manufacturer, or dealer of any goods 
produced in an establishment situated 
in the United States in or about which, 
within thirty days prior to the removal 
of such goods therefrom, there has been 
employed any minor as described in 
paragraph (b) of this section; 

(2) Each employment by an employer 
of any minor as described in paragraph 
(b) of this section, for any period in 
commerce or in the production of goods 
for commerce or in any enterprise en-
gaged in commerce or in the produc-
tion of goods for commerce; 

(3)–(4) [Reserved] 
(5) The failure by an employer em-

ploying any minor for whom records 
must be kept under any provision of 
part 516 or part 545 of ths title to main-
tain and preserve, as required by such 
provision, such records concerning the 
date of the minor’s birth and con-
cerning the proof of the minor’s age as 
are specified therein; and 

(6) The failure by an employer em-
ploying any minor subject to any pro-
vision of 29 CFR part 570, to take or 
cause to be taken such action as is nec-
essary to assure compliance with all 
requirements of such provision which, 
by the regulations in such part, are 
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made conditions for lawful employ-
ment of such minor. 

(b) Minors whose employment may re-
sult in violation. The violations de-
scribed in paragraph (a) may result 
from employment of any of the fol-
lowing minors as described: 

(1) Any minor under the age of 18 
years in any occupation (other than in 
agriculture) in which employment, as 
set forth in subpart E of part 570 of this 
chapter, has been found and declared 
by the Secretary to be particularly 
hazardous for or detrimental to the 
health or well-being of minors below 
such age; 

(2) Any minor under the age of 16 
years: 

(i) In agriculture during school hours 
for the school district where such 
minor is living while so employed; or 

(ii) In agriculture in any occupation 
found and declared by the Secretary as 
set forth in subpart E–1 of part 570 of 
this chapter, to be particularly haz-
ardous for the employment of minors 
below such age; or 

(iii) In any manufacturing or mining 
occupation; or 

(iv) In any other occupation other 
than in agriculture unless it is estab-
lished that such minor is at least 14 
years of age and the employment of 
such minor in such occupation is spe-
cifically permitted by and in accord 
with regulations of the Secretary as 
set forth in subpart C of part 570 of this 
chapter; 

(3) Any minor under the age of 14 
years: 

(i) In any occupation other than in 
agriculture; or 

(ii) In agriculture, outside of school 
hours for the school district where 
such minor is living while so employed, 
unless it is established either: 

(A) That such minor is not less than 
12 years of age and either (1) that such 
employment is with the written con-
sent of a parent or person standing in 
place of a parent of such minor, or (2) 
that such employment is on the same 
farm where such parent or person is 
also employed; or 

(B) That such minor, if less than 12 
years of age, is employed as described 
in paragraph (b)(4)(i) or (b)(4)(ii) of this 
section; and 

(4) Any minor under the age of 12 
years, unless it is established that such 
minor is employed in agriculture out-
side of school hours for the school dis-
trict where such minor is living while 
so employed, and: 

(i) Is employed by a parent or by a 
person standing in place of a parent of 
such minor, on a farm owned or oper-
ated by such parent or person; or 

(ii) Is employed with the written con-
sent of a parent or person standing in 
place of a parent of such minor, on a 
farm where, because of the provisions 
of section 13(a)(6) of the Act, none of 
the employees are required to be paid 
at the wage rate prescribed by section 
6(a)(5) of the Act. 

(c) Exemptions and exceptions. Conduct 
which otherwise might constitute a 
violation of the Act as described in 
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section 
may be shown to be not violative of the 
child labor provisions by evidence that 
a specific exemption or exception pro-
vided in the Act makes such conduct 
permissible. Thus, the Act provides: 

(1) That none of the child labor provi-
sions of section 12 shall apply to: (i) 
Any child employed as an actor or per-
former in motion pictures or theatrical 
productions, or in radio or television 
productions; (ii) any employee engaged 
in the delivery of newspapers to the 
consumer; (iii) any homeworker en-
gaged in the making of wreaths com-
posed principally of natural holly, pine, 
cedar, or other evergreens (including 
the harvesting of the evergreens or 
other forest products used in making 
such wreaths); or (iv) any employee 
whose services during the workweek 
are performed in a workplace within a 
foreign country or within territory 
under the jurisdiction of the United 
States other than the States, terri-
tories, and possessions listed in section 
13(f) of the Act (see Act, sections 
13(c)(3), 13(d), 13(f)); 

(2) That, with respect to the viola-
tions described in paragraph (a)(1) of 
this section, any such shipment or de-
livery for shipment of such goods by a 
purchaser who acquired them in good 
faith in reliance on written assurance 
from the producer, manufacturer, or 
dealer that the goods were produced in 
compliance with the requirements of 
section 12 of the Act, and who acquired 
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such goods for value without notice of 
any such violation, shall not be deemed 
prohibited (see Act, section 12(a) and 29 
CFR part 789); 

(3) That, with respect to violations 
described in paragraph (a)(2) of this 
section resulting from employment of 
minors as described in paragraph (b) 
(2)(iv), a parent or person standing in 
place of a parent may lawfully employ 
his or her own child or a child in his or 
her custody under the age of 16 years in 
an occupation other than: (i) Manufac-
turing or (ii) mining or (iii) an occupa-
tion found and declared by the Sec-
retary of Labor to be particularly haz-
ardous for the employment of children 
between the ages of 16 and 18 years or 
detrimental to their health or well- 
being, and an employer may lawfully 
employ a young worker between 14 and 
16 years of age in an occupation per-
mitted and under conditions prescribed 
by 29 CFR part 570, subpart C; 

(4) That, with respect to violations 
described in paragraph (a)(2) of this 
section resulting from employment of 
minors in agriculture as described in 
paragraph (b)(2)(iii), a parent or person 
standing in place of a parent may law-
fully employ on a farm owned or oper-
ated by such parent or person, his or 
her own child or a child in his or her 
custody under the age of 16 years in an 
occupation in agriculture found and de-
clared by the Secretary of Labor to be 
particularly hazardous for the employ-
ment of children below such age; 

(5) That, with respect to violations 
described in paragraph (a)(2) of this 
section resulting from employment of 
minors in agriculture as described in 
paragraph (b)(3)(ii), employment of mi-
nors 12 or 13 years of age is lawful 
under the conditions prescribed in 
paragraph (b)(3)(ii)(A) of this section 
and employment of minors under 12 
years of age is lawful under the condi-
tions prescribed in paragraph 
(b)(3)(ii)(B) of this section; and 

(6) That, with respect to violations 
described in paragraph (a)(2) of this 
section resulting from employment of 
minors in agriculture as described in 
paragraph (b)(4), employment of mi-
nors under 12 years of age is lawful 
under the conditions prescribed in 

paragraph (b)(4)(i) or (ii) of this sec-
tion. 

[40 FR 25792, June 18, 1975, as amended at 41 
FR 26836, June 29, 1976] 

§ 579.4 [Reserved] 

§ 579.5 How is the amount of the pen-
alty determined? 

(a) The administrative determination 
of the amount of the civil penalty, of 
not to exceed $10,000 for each employee 
who was the subject of a violation of 
section 12 or section 13(c)(5) of the Act 
relating to child labor or of any regula-
tion issued under that section, will be 
based on the available evidence of the 
violation or violations and will take 
into consideration the size of the busi-
ness of the person charged and the 
gravity of the violation as provided in 
paragraphs (b) through (d) of this sec-
tion; Provided, however, that for any 
violation occurring on or after January 
7, 2002 the civil money penalty amount 
will increase to not to exceed $11,000 
for each employee who was the subject 
of a violation. 

(b) In determining the amount of 
such penalty there shall be considered 
the appropriateness of such penalty to 
the size of the business of the person 
charged with the violation or viola-
tions, taking into account the number 
of employees employed by that person 
(and if the employment is in agri-
culture, the man-days of hired farm 
labor used in pertinent calendar quar-
ters), dollar volume of sales or business 
done, amount of capital investment 
and financial resources, and such other 
information as may be available rel-
ative to the size of the business of such 
person. 

(c) In determining the amount of 
such penalty there shall be considered 
the appropriateness of such penalty to 
the gravity of the violation or viola-
tions, taking into account, among 
other things, any history of prior viola-
tions; any evidence of willfulness or 
failure to take reasonable precautions 
to avoid violations; the number of mi-
nors illegally employed; the age of the 
minors so employed and records of the 
required proof of age; the occupations 
in which the minors were so employed; 
exposure of such minors to hazards and 
any resultant injury to such minors; 
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